
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Planning Committee Agenda
Wednesday, 8 March 2017 at 6.00 pm
Council Chamber, Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, TN34 3UY.   
Please enter the building via the Tourist Information Centre entrance.

If you are attending Muriel Matters House for this meeting, please enter the building via the 
Tourist Information Centre entrance. Doors to the Tourist Information Centre will be opened at 
17:45pm at the earliest and members of public will be escorted up to the Committee Room. 
Members of public are advised that they will need to sign in to comply with health and safety 
legislation.

For further information, please contact Emily Horne on 01424 451719 or email: 
ehorne@hastings.gov.uk

Page No.

1.  Apologies for Absence
2.  Declarations of Interest
3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2017 1 - 30
4.  Notification of any additional urgent items

5.  Planning Applications:
(a)  Lamp Post Banners At Various Locations

(Mr S Morley, Assistant Planner)
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_104238

31 - 60

6.  Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions
(Mrs E Evans – Planning Services Manager)

 127 Queens Road, Hastings
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_H
STBC_DCAPR_103920

61 - 62

Public Document Pack

http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_104238
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_104238
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_104238
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_103920
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_103920
http://publicaccess.hastings.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=_HSTBC_DCAPR_103920


This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 1

Present: Councillors Street (Chair), Scott (Vice-Chair), Beaney, Beaver, 
Clarke, Edwards, Dowling, Roberts, Webb (as the duly appointed substitute for 
Councillor Rogers) and Wincott

154. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillor Rogers.

155. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following Councillors declared their interest in the minutes as indicated:

Councillor Minute Interest
Street 158.1 – Rocklands 

Private Caravan Park, 
Rocklands Lane, 
Hastings

Personal – Had a 
conversation with the 
petitioner, Mr Okines, 
regarding the practicalities of 
the petition.

Wincott and Scott 159.3 – Winchester 
House, 93 Pevensey 
Road, St. Leonards on 
Sea

Personal – Member of East 
Sussex County Council   

156. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 JANUARY 2017 

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2017 be 
approved and signed by the Chair as a true record. 

157. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEMS 

None.

158. PLANNING APPLICATIONS ATTRACTING A PETITION: 

158.1 Rocklands Private Caravan Park, Rocklands Lane, Hastings 

Proposal: Discharge of condition 4 (details of the planting 
scheme and soft landscaping), 6 (archaeological 
monitoring), 7 (foul and surface water drainage 
scheme) and 8 (external colour scheme) of Appeal A 
ref. APP/B1415/C/15/3029007 – (EN/15/00028).

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 2

Application No: HS/CD/16/00655

Existing Use:

Conservation Area

Listed Building

Public Consultation

Caravan Park

No

No

10 further representations received since the report
was written.  1 petition received.

The Principal Planner, Miss Roots, presented this report for approval of the remaining 
part of condition 6 (archaeological monitoring) of Appeal A ref 
APP/B1415/C/15/3029007 – (EN/15/00028).

Condition 6 was partly discharged at Planning Committee on 16th November 2016 in 
relation to the written scheme of investigation which included the proposed 
methodology for the archaeological works. The remaining part of condition 6 
(archaeological monitoring) is considered under this application relating to the final 
archaeological watching brief report.  Both outstanding condition 4 (planting scheme 
and soft landscaping) and condition 7 (foul and surface water drainage scheme) will 
be considered at a future Planning Committee when current issues are resolved.

The report relates to the discharge of the outstanding part of condition 6 only, relating 
to the final archaeological watching brief report.  The main issue to be considered is 
whether the written record of archaeological works is adequate and has been 
submitted within the required timescale.  The applicant has submitted an 
Archaeological Watching Brief Report within 3 months of the work being undertaken, 
to comply with part of Condition 6. 

Members were informed of several updates to the report:-  

 1 petition and 10 further representations had been received since the 
publication of the agenda.  Objections had been received from 3 different 
individual/organisations, raising new concerns in respect of the archaeology 
condition as follows:-

- Concern that additional works to satisfy outstanding drainage and 
landscaping conditions may disturb archaeological remains;

- Premature to discharge condition without necessary groundworks being 
identified.

Other concerns relate to drainage and landscaping scheme which are not 
being considered under this application.

 In response to the petition and concerns raised, the Principal Planner, Miss 
Roots, provided an amended recommendation to the report:-

The discharge of condition 6 is based on the following information:-

Page 2



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 3

- Planting Schedule & Planting, Maintenance and Establishment 
Specification (The Mayhew Consultancy Ltd, January 2017);

- Drainage Layout Plan (Drawing: Drainage01, November 2016);
- Written Scheme of Investigation for Archaeological Monitoring 

(Archaeology South-East, August 2016);
- Archaeological Watching Brief Report (Archaeology South-East, 

December 2016).

The applicant is advised that should changes to the scheme, not currently 
identified in the application, be made in order to progress the discharge of 
landscaping or drainage conditions, or in light of any subsequent revisions to 
drainage or relevant ground works that may occur through the building 
regulation process, this condition will no longer be deemed to be discharged 
and a further application for discharge of condition 6, part 2, will be required.

Condition 6 of appeal decision APP/B1415/C/15/3029007:
"No further groundworks required to complete the development shall take place 
until the implementation of a programme of archaeological works has been 
secured in accordance with a written scheme of investigation submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  A written record of any 
archaeological works undertaken shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority within 3 months of the completion of any archaeological investigation 
unless an alternative timescale for the submission of the report is first agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority".

Members were shown plans and photographs of the application site.

Mr Bob Okines, Petitioner, Save Ecclesbourne Glen Campaign Group, spoke 
against the discharge of Condition 6 of the Planning Inspector’s appeal decision. He 
said that it would be premature to discharge Condition 6 until the works have been 
agreed.  He referred to three outstanding issues which he felt needed further 
consideration:- the tree planting scheme; surface water drainage and the building 
control recommendations.  He requested that all the conditions set by the Planning 
Inspector are only discharged after all of the plans and schemes are agreed by the 
relevant authority and the wishes of the Planning Inspector and various consultees 
are satisfied.  

The applicant, had been invited to attend, but was not present. 

Councillor Bacon, Ward Councillor for Old Hastings, was present and spoke against 
the discharge of Condition 6.  He said that all works at Rocklands must be subject to 
archaeological monitoring to protect any archaeological remains within the Iron Age 
hill fort and the scheduled monument.  He felt that discharging condition 6 would be 
premature as there are still further ground works needed to complete the building at 
this stage and therefore Condition 6 should not be discharged until the full scale of 
works is known, so that all consultees have the chance to review them.  He said we 
cannot allow any archaeological remains to be negatively affected until all works that 
may be carried out are clearly specified.  

Page 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 4

The Principal Planning Officer addressed the issues raised by the petitioner and ward 
councillor, she said that the written scheme of investigation which sets out the 
methodology for undertaking the works, as approved by the county archaeologist, 
was heard by the Planning Committee in November 2016.  Furthermore, the 
concerns set out in the petition and other objections about the impact of the tree and 
landscaping plan and any drainage and additional ground works that might entail, 
have been addressed in the amended recommendation which states that if there are 
any further ground works the applicant would have to submit a revised discharge of 
condition application. The concerns received relating to drainage and the 
landscaping scheme are ongoing and will go forward to a future Planning Committee 
once they have been resolved.

Members discussed this item at length, and sought clarification on Condition 6. The 
Principal Planner advised members that the condition attached by the Planning 
Inspector set out a time limit because part 1 and part 2 of Condition 6 are closely 
connected.  Part 2 (the watching brief) has to be submitted in 3 months.  If not 
discharged, part 1 may have to be redone again and we will end up in an endless 
cycle. In this process all the conditions cannot be discharged together. The amended 
recommendation, as agreed by the archaeologist, is intended to address concerns 
that could happen.  

Councillor Beaney proposed a motion to approve the amended recommendation as 
set out in the officer’s update/powerpoint presentation.  This was seconded by 
Councillor Dowling.  The vote was lost by 4 votes to 6.  

Councillor Wincott proposed a substantive motion to defer the application as set out 
in the resolution below.   This was seconded by Councillor Scott.  

The substantive motion to defer the application was agreed by 7 votes to 3 against as 
set out in the resolution below.

RESOLVED – by (7 votes to 3 against) to defer determining the application 
until the next meeting of this committee to allow for further consultation with 
the County Archaeologist and the Legal Department as to the implications for 
the validity of the planning application.

159. PLANNING APPLICATIONS: 

159.1 815-817 The Ridge, St. Leonards on Sea 

Proposal: Erection of 4no. detached dwellings.
Application No: HS/FA/16/00790

Page 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 5

Existing Use:

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

Residential curtilage

No

No

The Applicant is Council employee in politically
restricted post

The Principal Planner, Miss Roots, presented this report on the erection of 4 
detached dwellings. She informed the Committee that this application had been 
brought to the Planning Committee for determination because the applicant is a 
senior council employee in a politically restricted post.  Members were shown plans 
of the application site.

Planning permission had previously been approved for three dwellings on the site in 
2015.  This application is for 4 detached 2 storey dwellings comprising 4 bedrooms in 
the curtilage of 815 and 817 The Ridge.    

Members raised concern regarding the gradual increase in the number of properties 
proposed on this site.

Councillor Beaver proposed a motion to approve the application as set out in the 
resolution below.  This was seconded by Councillor Dowling.

RESOLVED - (unanimously) that planning permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission; 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:

4178/16/LPB/B,4178/16/SUDS/B,4178/16/1/B,4178/16/2,4178/16/3,4178/E
X 

3. With the exception of internal works the building works required to 
carry out the development allowed by this permission must only be 
carried out within the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays. 

4. No development shall take place above ground until details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 
dwellings hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried 

Page 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 6

out in accordance with the approved details; 

5. Notwithstanding the details on approved plans 4178/16/1/B and 
4178/16/LBP/B, details regarding the alignment of the parking area for 
plot 3 and 817A, and the spaces to the rear; turning space, and an 
additional parking space for visitors, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  These details 
should include 6m to the rear of each parking space in order to 
facilitate turning.  Thereafter the parking areas be retained for that use 
and shall not be used other than for parking and turning of motor 
vehicles;  

6. The access shall be reconstructed with a minimum width of 4.5m for 
the first 10m and laid out and constructed in accordance with the 
attached HT407 form/diagram and all works undertaken shall be 
executed and completed by the applicant to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the development 
hereby permitted;  

7. The completed access shall have maximum gradients of 2.5% (1 in 40)  
from the channel line and 11% (1 in 9) thereafter; 

8. Prior to the commencement of development details of the proposed 
surface water drainage to prevent the discharge of surface water from 
the proposed site onto the public highway and, similarly, to prevent the 
discharge of surface water from the highway onto the site shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in consultation 
with the Highway Authority; 

9. The development shall not be occupied until cycle parking areas have 
been provided in accordance with the approved plans or details which 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority and the areas shall thereafter be retained for that use and 
shall not be used other than for the parking of cycles; 

10. The windows in the side elevations of the proposed dwellings shown 
serving bathrooms shall be obscure glazed with obscure glass to a 
minimum level of obscurity equivalent to Pilkington Texture Glass 
Level 3, or similar equivalent and be permanently fixed shut and non-
opening below 1.8 metres from finished floor level;  

11. (i) Construction of the development shall not commence until details 
of the proposed means of foul sewerage and surface water 
disposal/management have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

(ii) Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
approved under (i) and no occupation of any of the dwellings or 
flats hereby approved shall occur until those works have been 

Page 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 7

completed;

(iii)   No occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved 
shall occur until the Local Planning Authority has confirmed in 
writing that it is satisfied, that the necessary drainage 
infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately service the 
development. 

12. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of soft 
landscaping, which shall include indications of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land including details of those to be retained, 
together with measures for their protection in the course of 
development.  New soft landscaping details shall include planting 
plans; written specifications (including cultivation and other operations 
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of plants, 
noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities where 
appropriate together with an implementation programme;  

13. All planting seeding or turfing comprised in the approved soft 
landscaping scheme shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development, or with the written agreement of the Local 
Planning Authority, in the first planting and seeding seasons following 
the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, 
whichever is the sooner.  Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation;  

14. No development shall take place until full details of the hard landscape 
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved.  
These details shall include proposed finished levels or contours; 
means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle and pedestrian 
access and circulation areas; hard surfacing materials;  

15. All hard landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  The works shall be carried out prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with the 
programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority;  

16. Before the development herby approved is occupied, provision shall be 
made for the ability to connect to fibre based broadband; 

17. No development shall take place until the measures outlined in the 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (The Mayhew Consultancy) dated 
October 2016 have been fully implemented, unless:

Page 7



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 8

(i)   the programme for such measures is otherwise specified within 
that document, in which case the works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the timescales contained therein or;

(ii)   unless the measures contained within the Appraisal is otherwise 
first varied, by way of prior written approval from the Local 
Planning Authority.  

18. Prior to commencement of development, permission must be obtained 
by Southern Water to connect to the public sewer.  A copy of this 
permission from Southern Water shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development.  Please 
contact Southern Water: Developer Services, Southern Water, Southern 
House, Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW. Tel: 0330 
303 0119. E-mail: developerservices@southernwater.co.uk. 

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990;

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning;

3. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents. (Hastings Local Plan 
2004 - Policy DG4);

4. In the interests of the visual amenity of the area. (Hastings Local Plan 
2004 - Policy DG1);

5. In the interests of the safety of persons and vehicles entering and 
leaving the access and proceeding along the highway; 

6. In the interests of the safety of persons and vehicles entering and 
leaving the access and proceeding along the highway;

7. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles using the access and/or 
proceeding along the highway;

8. In the interests of highway safety;

9. In order that the development site is accessible by non-car modes and 
to meet the objectives of sustainable development;

10. To protect the amenities of adjoining residential properties;

11. To prevent increased risk of flooding;

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 9

12. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
visual amenity; 

13. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
visual amenity; 

14. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
visual amenity; 

15. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
visual amenity;

16. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in accordance with 
Policy SC1 of the Hastings Planning Strategy 2014;

17. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance; and

18. To support sustainable drainage methods proposed, and prevent 
increased risk of flooding.

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may 

result in enforcement action without further warning;

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework;

3. Bins for collection from the dwellings hereby approved should be 
placed on the boundary of the highway (The Ridge);

4. The site is within a High Pressure Pipeline (Scotia Gas Networks) 2km 
buffer zone and guidance regarding any possible excavation works 
should be obtained through the relevant legislation under The Health 
and Safety Executive (HSE).  For more information please contact the 
Plant Location Team at plantlocation@sgn.co.uk before works 
commence;

5. The applicant is advised that the two smaller bedrooms at first floor 
level in Plots 1, 2 and 3, do not meet the minimum floorspace 
requirements for a double bedroom, and should only provide one 
bedspace each;

6. No development or tree planting shall be located within 3m either side 
of the centreline of the public sewer, and no soakaways shall be 
located within 5m of the sewer.

Page 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 10

159.2 Queensway North, Queensway, St. Leonards on Sea 

Proposal: Construction of new factory premises comprising 
manufacturing space, showroom, offices, welfare 
facilities and ancillary service yard and car park 
areas.
 

Application No: HS/FA/15/00817

Existing Use:

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

Undeveloped

No

No

4 letters of objection and 1 letter of support received

The Principal Planner, Mr Batchelor, presented this report for construction of a new 
factory premises comprising manufacturing space, showroom, offices, welfare facilities 
and ancillary service yard and car park areas.

He explained that the applicant was looking to relocate to a new premises to continue 
his furniture manufacturing business. In 2016, the application was amended to 
address drainage, the impact on the SSSI, biodiversity matters and the level of 
parking provision following discussions with Natural England and East Sussex County 
Council. He explained that the level of proposed parking fell below the parking 
standard for this development type and size.   The applicant requires a certain level of 
floor space and has demonstrated that 40 parking spaces is adequate due to low 
staffing levels.  This has been accepted by the Local Highways Authority but is 
conditioned for use by Michael Tyler Furniture (UK) Ltd only.  This will ensure that 
should any new user wish to take over the site a planning permission will be required 
and the requirement for additional parking can be reviewed.  

The Principal Planner provided several updates to the report. He advised that since 
the publication of the agenda, the wording of Condition 3 had been amended from 
‘Michael Tyler’ to ‘Michael Tyler Furniture (UK) Ltd’.  He referred to the site plan, 
stating that the hatched area of the plan showed the difference between the Local 
Plan Employment Allocation (Policy LRA6) and the extent of the application site.

Members queried whether at a future time, someone could purchase the 
name/company and start a different business on the site.  Members were advised that 
a different use class will require a new planning application; any other use would be a 
clear manipulation of the intention of the condition.  

Members were shown plans and photographs of the application site.

Councillor Beaver proposed a motion to approve the application as set out in the 
resolution below, subject to the amended wording of condition 3.  This was seconded 
by Councillor Roberts. 

Page 10



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 11

RESOLVED - (unanimously) that planning permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions:-

O
L
V
E
D
 
-
 
(
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
)
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
p
e
r
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
 
b

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission; 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:

A365_PL_001A, 002A, 003A, 004A, 010A, 011A and 012A 

3. This permission shall ensure for the benefit of furniture manufacturer 
Michael Tyler Furniture (UK) Ltd only and not for the benefit of the land,  
and, notwithstanding the changes of use permitted within Part 3 of 
Schedule 2 Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking, re-enacting or 
modifying that Order), the development hereby permitted shall be used 
for purposes within Class B1(c) of the Town and Country (Use Classes) 
Order (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order) 1987 
only, and for no other purpose. Upon Michael Tyler Furniture (UK) Ltd. 
ceasing to occupy and/or use the building as approved, the use hereby 
permitted shall cease and no occupation or use of the premises shall 
occur until such time that an additional planning permission has been 
granted; 

4. The development shall not be occupied until parking areas have been 
provided in accordance with the approved plans and the areas shall 
thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other than for 
the parking of motor vehicles; 

5. The development shall not be occupied until cycle parking areas have 
been provided in accordance with the approved plans and the areas 
shall thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other 
than for the parking of cycles; 

6. During any forms of earthworks and/or excavations that are carried out 
as part of the development, suitable vehicle wheel washing equipment 
should be provided within the site for use through the earthworks 
phase, to the approval of the Planning Authority, to prevent 
contamination and damage to the adjacent roads; 

7. Before the development hereby approved is commenced, details of the 
turning spaces within the development, taking into account the 
requirement for a 5m (or otherwise appropriate) buffer zone with the 
adjacent ancient woodland, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall not be 
occupied until the approved turning spaces for vehicles has been 
provided and the turning spaces shall thereafter be retained for that 
use and shall not be used for any other purpose; 

Page 11



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 12

e
 
g
r
a
n
t
e
d
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
:
-

1

8. (i) Construction of the development shall not commence until details 
of the proposed means of foul sewerage and surface water 
disposal/management have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

(ii) Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
approved under (i) and the development shall not be brought into 
use until those works have been completed;

(iii)  The development shall not be brought into use until the Local 
Planning Authority has confirmed in writing that it is satisfied, that 
the necessary drainage has been provided in accordance with the 
approved details and is now available to adequately service the 
development. Evidence in support of this shall include 
photographs. 

9. The details required for condition 8 above shall be based on the 
surface water drainage strategy outlined in Peter Brett Associates 
drawing no. 26499/2001/500/005C. Surface water runoff from the 
approved development should be limited to 14.1 l/s for all rainfall 
events, including those with a 1 in 100 (plus climate change) annual 
probability occurrence. The details shall include evidence of this in the 
form of hydraulic calculations and these calculations should take into 
account the connectivity of the different surface water drainage 
features; 

10. The details required by condition 8 above shall include details of how 
surface water flows exceeding the capacity of the surface water 
drainage features will be managed safely; 

11. The details required by condition 8 above shall include a maintenance 
and management plan for the entire drainage system. The plan shall be 
consistent with the biodiversity and drainage strategy approved under 
reference HS/CD/16/00662 (in connection with planning permission 
HS/FA/12/00802) and clearly state who will be responsible for managing 
all aspects of the surface water drainage system, including piped 
drains. Evidence that these responsibility arrangements will remain in 
place throughout the lifetime of the development should be provided; 

12. No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, 
vegetation clearance) until a construction environmental management 
plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall 
include the following:

a)   Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities;

b)   Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”;

Page 12



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 13

.c)   Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working 
practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be 
provided as a set of method statements);

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to 
biodiversity features;

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to 
be present on site to oversee works;

f)   Responsible persons and lines of communication;

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works 
(ECoW) or similarly competent person; and

h)   Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout 
the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved 
details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. 

13. Before its installation, details of all external lighting, including a 
“lighting design strategy for biodiversity”, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The strategy shall:

a) identify those areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive 
for bat species and that are likely to cause disturbance in or 
around their breeding sites and resting places or along important 
routes used to access key areas of their territory, for example, for 
foraging; and

b) show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the 
provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical 
specifications) so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to 
be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species using their 
territory or having access to their breeding sites and resting 
places.

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the approved 
details and in accordance with the approved strategy before the 
building is brought into use. The lighting shall thereafter be maintained 
in accordance with the strategy. 

14. No development shall take place until an ecological design strategy 
(EDS) addressing:

a) Retention and protection of existing habitats during construction;

Page 13



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 14

b) Habitat removal and reinstatement;

c)  Provision for wildlife corridors, linear features and habitat     
connectivity;

d) Woodland, tree, hedgerow, shrub, wetland and wildflower planting 
and establishment;

e) Proposed new landforms associated with habitat creation, e.g. 
water bodies and watercourses;

f)  Soil handling, movement and management;

g)  Creation, restoration and enhancement of semi-natural habitats;

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

The EDS shall include the following:

a)  Purpose and conservation objectives for the proposed works;

b)  Review of site potential and constraints;

c) Detailed design(s) and/or working method(s) to achieve stated 
objectives;

d) Extent and location/area of proposed works on appropriate scale 
maps and plans;

e) Type and source of materials to be used where appropriate, e.g. 
native  species of local provenance;

f) Timetable for implementation demonstrating that works are aligned 
with the proposed phasing of development;

g)  Persons responsible for implementing the works;

h)  Details of initial aftercare and long-term maintenance;

i) Details for monitoring (including monitoring of the impacts on the 
SSSI and who is responsible for the monitoring) and remedial 
measures;

j)  Details for disposal of any wastes arising from works.

The EDS shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
and the timetable for implementation and all features shall be retained 
in that manner thereafter; 

15. No development shall commence until a construction management 
plan for the control of noise, dust, vibrations and light pollution during 

Page 14



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 15

construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plan; 

16. With the exception of internal works the building works required to 
carry out the development and construction related deliveries to and 
from the site must only be carried out within the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
09.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays. 

17. Once brought into use deliveries and waste collection from the 
premises shall not take place outside the hours of:

08:00 and 20:00 Mondays to Fridays
08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays
No deliveries or waste collection on Sundays or Public Holidays 

18. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of soft 
landscaping, which shall include indications of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land (and adjacent to the site) including details of 
those to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the 
course of development.  New soft landscaping details shall include 
planting plans; written specifications (including cultivation and other 
operations associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules 
of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities 
where appropriate together with an implementation programme; 

19. All planting seeding or turfing comprised in the approved soft 
landscaping scheme shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development, or with the written agreement of the Local 
Planning Authority, in the first planting and seeding seasons following 
the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, 
whichever is the sooner.  Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation; 

20. No development above ground shall take place until full details of the 
hard landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as 
approved.  These details shall include proposed finished levels or 
contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle and 
pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; 
minor artefacts and structures (eg furniture, play equipment, refuse or 
other storage units, signs lighting etc.); proposed and existing 
functional services above and below ground (eg drainage, power, 

Page 15



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 16

communications cables, pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes, 
supports etc.); retained historic landscape features and proposals for 
restoration, where relevant; 

21. All hard landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  The works shall be carried out prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with the 
programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority; 

22. Before development is commended details of appropriate climate 
change mitigation and adaptation measures as required by policy SC3 
and in accordance with the energy efficiency hierarchy in policy SC4 of 
the Hastings Local Plan, The Hastings Planning Strategy 2011-2028 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details; 

23. Before the development hereby approved is brought into use provision 
shall be made for the ability to connect to fibre-based broadband; 

24. No development shall take place until the developer has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance 
with a Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation which has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

25. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until 
the archaeological site investigation and post investigation 
assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme 
set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under 
condition 23 and that provision for analysis, publication and 
dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured; 

26. In the event that there is a breach into the greensand layer below the 
site, emergency procedures as approved under reference 
HS/CD/16/00189 (in accordance with planning permission 
HS/FA/12/00802) shall be followed in the case of such an emergency. 

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990;

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning;

3. In order to maintain control over future use of the premises in the 
interests of highway safety. The approved development provides for 
less on-site parking than would typically be required for the approved 
use. This parking is acceptable for the intended occupier of the 
premises and their proposed use but should the occupier or use 

Page 16



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 17

change the level of on-site parking would need to be reconsidered in 
accordance with policy DM4 of the Hastings Local Plan: Development 
Management Plan and Supplementary Planning Document - Parking 
Provision in New Developments;

4. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the 
access and proceeding along the highway;

5. In order that the development site is accessible by non-car modes and 
to meet the objectives of sustainable development;

6. In the interests of highway safety and for the benefit and convenience 
of the public at large;

7. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the 
access and proceeding along the highway and to protect the adjacent 
ancient woodland;

8. To prevent increased risk of flooding and to ensure the drainage 
proposals adequately protect features of nature conservation 
importance;

9. To prevent increased risk of flooding and to ensure the drainage 
proposals adequately protect features of nature conservation 
importance;

10. To prevent increased risk of flooding and to ensure the drainage 
proposals adequately protect features of nature conservation 
importance;

11. To prevent increased risk of flooding and to ensure the drainage 
proposals adequately protect features of nature conservation 
importance;

12. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance;

13. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance and 
to protect neighbouring residential amenities;

14. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance;

15. In the interests of the amenity of the neighbouring residential 
occupiers; 

16. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents; 

17. In the interests of the amenity of the neighbouring residential 
occupiers; 

18. In the interests of the health of the trees, to protect the visual amenity, 

Page 17



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 18

to provide for adequate SuDS features and to mitigate/enhance 
recognised features of nature conservation importance; 

19. In the interests of the health of the trees, to protect the visual amenity, 
to provide for adequate SuDS features and to mitigate/enhance 
recognised features of nature conservation importance; 

20. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
visual amenity; 

21. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
visual amenity; 

22. To ensure the development complies with policies SC3 and SC4 of the 
Hastings Local Plan: The Hastings Planning Strategy;

23. To ensure the development complies with policy SC1 of the Hastings 
Local Plan: The Hastings Planning Strategy;

24. To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is 
safeguarded and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy 
Framework;

25. To ensure that the archaeological and historical interest of the site is 
safeguarded and recorded to comply with the National Planning Policy 
Framework; and

26. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance 
including the Marline Valley SSSI.

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may 

result in enforcement action without further warning;

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework;

3. A formal application for connection to the public foul sewerage system 
is required in order to service this development, please contact 
Southern Water: Developer Services, Southern Water, Southern House, 
Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW. Tel: 0330 303 0119. 
E-mail: developerservices@southernwater.co.uk.

4. Southern Water advise:

Page 18



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 19

 that waste water grease traps should be provided on the kitchen 
drain waste pipe or drain installed and maintained by the owner or 
operator of the premises;

 hard surfacing should be drained by means of oil trap gullies or 
petrol/oil interceptors; and

 that should any sewer be found on site during construction works, 
an investigation of the sewer will be required to ascertain its 
condition, the number of properties served, and potential means of 
access before any works commenced on site. The applicant is 
advised to discuss the matter further with Southern House, 
Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW. Tel: 0330 303 
0119. E-mail: developerservices@southernwater.co.uk.

5. The applicant may wish to consider the Workplace (Health, Safety and 
Welfare) Regulations 1992 in relation to the minimum requirements for 
toilet provision;

6. If the applicant requires further information in relation to food, health 
and safety matters please contact Food Health & Safety on 01424 
451078; and

7. The applicant is reminded that conditions relating to biodiversity and 
drainage above should be consistent with the biodiversity and drainage 
strategy approved under HS/CD/16/00662 (as required by the s106 legal 
agreement relating to planning permission HS/FA/12/00802).

159.3 Winchester House, 93 Pevensey Road, St. Leonards on Sea 

Proposal: Demolition of 2 storey extension to the East of 
Winchester House and provision of replacement 3 
storey extension and glazed link accommodating 
6no. 2 bed apartments.

Application No: HS/LA/16/00691

Existing Use:

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

Vacant Residential

Yes – Markwick Terrace

No

7 letters of objection received

Page 19



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 20

The Planning Services Manager, Mrs Evans, presented this report for the demolition 
of the 2 storey extension to the east of Winchester House and replacement with a 3 
storey extension and glazed link accommodating 6 X 2 bed apartments.  

The Planning Services Manager provided several updates to the report. She advised 
that since the publication of the agenda, the number of representations had 
increased to 7 letters of objection from 6 different properties.  Members were shown 
plans and photographs of the application site.

The property has been vacant for approximately 10 years. Planning permission was 
granted for the conversion of the whole block to 22 flats in October 2016. When 
originally submitted, the extension was considered unacceptable in terms of bulk, 
mass and scale and was positioned too far forward in relation to the main building.  
Amended plans were subsequently submitted showing the extension moved back to 
be in line with the main façade of Winchester House.  The Planning Services 
Manager advised the committee that some letters of representation had been 
submitted prior to this amendment.  

The application proposed 18 parking spaces for flats and the provision for a cycle 
store to accommodate 30 bikes.  Members discussed the provision of cycle storage 
noting that car ownership is significantly lower for those living in affordable housing. 

The Planning Services Manager said that Condition 6 of the report ensures that the 
details of the bin storage and car parking/cycle parking layouts will be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works to enable 
the number of cycle spaces to be finalised at a later stage.  She advised that some of 
the space could be better utilised for bin storage.  Policy HN3 is relevant to the 
assessment of this application as it considers demolition within a conservation area.  
Although the loss of the existing annexe is unfortunate, it is noted that the demolition 
relates to only a portion of the building rather than the whole.  Therefore the general 
aims of criteria a) and b) of Policy HN3 are considered to be met or not relevant in 
that the main building which has been vacant for over 10 years will be converted for a 
viable residential use and will remain intact.

Councillor Beaver sought clarification on parking provision, he asked why additional 
parking had not been recommended for the site.  The Planning Services Manager 
said that Highways had made no objection and had given no clarification.

Councillor Scott proposed a motion to approve the application as set out in the 
resolution below.  This was seconded by Councillor Beaver.  

RESOLVED - (unanimously) that planning permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission;

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:

Page 20



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 21

2-SP-22 REV D, 3/B/01-10. 1625P/101B, 102B, 103A, 104A, 105A, 106A, 
107A - 107. 2/PKG/23 Rev D. 24 Rev A. 2-SP-22 Rev B. 

3. With the exception of internal works the demolition and building works 
required to carry out the development allowed by this permission must 
only be carried out within the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays.

4. No development shall take place (including any demolition, ground 
works, site clearance) until a method statement for creation of new 
wildlife features such as bat roosts and structures and for the 
demolition of buildings has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The content of the method statement 
shall include the:

a) purpose and objectives for the proposed works;
b) detailed designs and/or working methods necessary to achieve 

stated objectives (including, where relevant, type and source of 
materials to be used);

c) extent and location of proposed works shown on appropriate scale 
maps and plans;

d) timetable for implementation, demonstrating that works are aligned 
with the proposed phasing of construction;

e) persons responsible for implementing the works;
f) initial aftercare and long-term maintenance;
g) disposal of any wastes arising from works

The works shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved 
details and shall be retained in that manner thereafter.    

5. The demolition of any part of the building shall not, in any 
circumstances, commence unless the local planning authority has 
been provided with either:

a) a licence issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 53 of 
the conservation of habitats and species Regulations 2010 
authorising the specified activity/development to go ahead; or

b) a statement in writing from the relevant licencing body to the effect 
that it does not consider that the specified activity/development 
will require a licence. 

6. No development above ground shall take place until full details of the 
hard landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as 
approved.  These details shall include proposed finished levels or 
contours; means of enclosure; bin storage; car parking/cycle parking 
layouts; other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

Page 21



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 22

hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and structures (eg furniture, 
refuse or other storage units, signs lighting etc.);  retained historic 
landscape features and proposals for restoration, where relevant;    

7. All hard landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  The works shall be carried out prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with the 
programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority; 

8. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of soft 
landscaping, which shall include an updated tree protection plan, 
indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land including 
details of those to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development.  New soft landscaping details 
shall include planting plans; written specifications (including 
cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass 
establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and 
proposed numbers/densities where appropriate together with an 
implementation programme; 

9. All planting seeding or turfing comprised in the approved soft 
landscaping scheme shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development, or with the written agreement of the Local 
Planning Authority, in the first planting and seeding seasons following 
the occupation of any buildings or the completion of the development, 
whichever is the sooner.  Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation; 

10. (i) Construction of the development shall not commence until details 
of the proposed means of foul sewerage and surface water 
disposal/management have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

(ii) Development shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
approved under (i) and no occupation of any of the dwellings or 
flats hereby approved shall occur until those works have been 
completed; and

(iii)   No occupation of any of the dwellings or flats hereby approved 
shall occur until the Local Planning Authority has confirmed in 
writing that it is satisfied, that the necessary drainage 
infrastructure capacity is now available to adequately service the 
development. 

11. No development shall take place above ground until samples of the 

Page 22



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 23

following materials to be used in the construction of the external 
surfaces of the extension hereby permitted have been made available 
on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority

a) brick for the main elevations and projecting string course of the 
extension;

b) brick for the rubbers to be used for the segmental brick arches 
above the windows;

c) roof slate and ridge tile; and
d) single ply membrane for flat roof area 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.

12. No development shall take place above ground until details of the 
following have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

a) joinery details of all new doors and windows;
b) details of materials and finishes of proposed curtain walling 

including horizontal and vertical sections at 1:10 scale; and
c) details of materials and profiles of the proposed window cills

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

13. The brick bond on the main elevations, the projecting brick string 
course and the segmental brick arches above the new window 
openings shall all exactly replicate the detail of these features on the 
original building;   

14. No development shall take place until temporary protective fences to 
safeguard the trees and/or hedges to be retained on the site have been 
erected in accordance with the current BS5837:2012: Trees in relation 
to design, demolition and construction, standards and to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  All such fences shall be 
kept in a sound, upright and complete condition until the development 
has been completed and/or the Local Planning Authority confirm in 
writing that the works have been sufficiently completed for the fencing 
to be removed; 

15. No flat hereby approved shall be occupied until readily accessible 
external storage space for refuse bins awaiting collection have been 
provided to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990;

Page 23



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 24

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning;

3. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents;

4. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance;

5. To protect features of recognised nature conservation importance;

6. In the interests of the character and amenity of the Markwick Terrace  
Conservation Area;

7. In the interests of the character and amenity of the Markwick Terrace  
Conservation Area;

8. In the interests of the character and amenity of the Markwick Terrace  
Conservation Area;

9. In the interests of the character and amenity of the Markwick Terrace  
Conservation Area;

10. To ensure that no property is occupied until adequate drainage 
facilities have been provided; 

11. In the interests of the character and amenity of the Markwick Terrace  
Conservation Area;

12. In the interests of the character and amenity of the Markwick Terrace  
Conservation Area;

13. In the interests of the character and amenity of the Markwick Terrace  
Conservation Area;

14. In the interests of the health of the trees and to protect the visual 
amenity; and 

15. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
character and amenity of the area.

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may 

result in enforcement action without further warning;

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework;

Page 24



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 25

3. The developer is advised  to contact Asset protection Kent 
AssetProtection kent@networkrail.co.uk prior to any works 
commencing on site due to the location of a hidden shaft within the 
region of the proposed application; and

4. A formal application for connection to the public foul sewerage system 
is required in order to service this development, please contact 
Southern Water: Developer Services, Southern Water, Southern House, 
Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW. Tel: 0330 303 0119. 
E-mail: developerservices@southernwater.co.uk.

159.4 1 Marine Parade, Hastings 

Proposal: Re-building of the existing 4 storey property and 
reinstatement as a residential property for use as a 
HMO (sui generis).

Application No: HS/FA/16/00905

Existing Use:

Conservation Area:

Listed Building

Public Consultation

Fire damaged property, HMO use

Yes – Old Town

No

3 letters of objection received 1 letter of support

The Planning Services Manager, Mrs Evans, presented this report for the re-building 
of the existing 4 storey property and reinstatement as a residential property for use as 
a HMO (sui generis). 

The building will retain its original footprint and height so as to replicate the street 
scene.  The existing use of the property as a 7 bedroom HMO (4 double and 3 single 
rooms) will house no more than 10 people.   Although a condition controlling the 
number of persons living in the premises would be unenforceable, the premises will 
be subject to licensing and inspections from the Council’s HMO Licensing Team as 
standard practice.  

The Planning Services Manager also advised that concern had been raised by the 
neighbours regarding bin storage alongside the property in the passage way between 
No.1 Marine Parade and No. 1 West Street.  Due to confined space on the site, the 
bins will be positioned on the piece of land opposite No.28 George Street.  While this 
area of land falls outside the site boundary, it has been historically linked to the 
property for over 10 years and will be subject to a Grampian condition on any 
planning consent.  Consideration had also been given to locating a cycle storage unit 
along the side of the property in the passageway; however she said it would create 
an unacceptable level of clutter. Given the proximity of the site to the Town Centre 

Page 25



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 26

and adequate public transport connections, cycle storage has not been provided in 
this application.

Councillor Edwards proposed a motion to approve the application as set out in the 
resolution below.  This was seconded by Councillor Scott.  

RESOLVED - (unanimously) that planning permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission; 

2. No demolition works shall commence until a copy of the completed 
contract for the redevelopment works has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The redevelopment 
shall start within 6 months from the date of the completed contract 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority;  

3. No demolition work shall start until a Method Statement has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. 
Demolition and construction work shall only take place in accordance 
with the approved method statement which shall include:

a)  measures to protect and prevent any damage to the surrounding 
listed buildings

b)  measures to control the emission of dust and dirt generated by 
demolition and construction works;

c)  a scheme for controlling noise and vibration from demolition and 
construction activities [including details of any piling];

d)  the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction 
works, loading/unloading of plant & materials and restoration of any 
damage to the highway;

e)  location of compounds and or storage of construction materials to be 
used during demolition and construction.

The works shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.  

4. Prior to commencement of the erection of the replacement building 
samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external 
surfaces shall be made available on site to be inspected and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details;  

5. Prior to commencement of the erection of the replacement building, 
joinery details of all new windows and doors, at a scale of 1:10 elevations 
with full size  (1:1) sections through cills, heads, frames and opening 
lights, including glazing bars and mullions and other decorative 
elements, including paint colour etc., shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and only those approved 

Page 26



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 27

details employed within the development and thereafter retained;   

6. With the exception of internal works the building works required to carry 
out the development allowed by this permission must only be carried out 
within the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
No working on Sundays or Public Holidays. 

7. No deliveries to the site shall be made outside of the following times:-

08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays
Not at all on Sundays or Public Holidays. 

8. Any external windows serving bathrooms or WCs shall be obscure 
glazed and remain as such thereafter;  

9. Prior to occupation details of the finalised layout of the kitchens shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
conjunction with the HMO Licensing Team. The kitchens shall then be 
provided in accordance with the approved layout and retained thereafter;  

10. The development shall not be occupied until the local Planning Authority 
has approved in writing a full scheme for the provision of;

(a) an adequate refuse store, including details of:
(i) location
(ii) materials and finish
(iii) maintenance programme

The refuse store shall then be provided prior to occupation and retained 
in a good working order thereafter.  

11. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 418MP01/03A and 418MP01/04.  

Reasons:

1. This condition is imposed in accordance with the provisions of Section 
91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990;

2. To prevent premature demolition and the creation of an unsightly gap 
in the streetscene which would be detrimental to the visual amenities 
of the conservation area; 

3. To protect the character and appearance of the conservation area and 
the preserve the neighbouring listed buildings; 

Page 27



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 28

4. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
character and amenity of the area; 

5. To ensure a satisfactory form of development in the interests of the 
character and amenity of the conservation area; 

6. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents; 

7. To safeguard the amenity of adjoining residents; 

8. In the interests of the amenity of the residential occupiers; 

9. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development that is functional and 
adequate facilities are provided for the number of residents within the 
unit; 

10. To ensure a satisfactory standard of development and in the interest of 
future and existing local residents; 

11. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Notes to the Applicant 
 
1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this permission may 

result in enforcement action without further warning;

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application 
Hastings Borough Council has actively sought to work with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive manner, in accordance with 
paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework;

3. Consideration should be given to the provision of a domestic sprinkler 
system;

4. Wherever practicable materials shall be salvaged from the existing 
building and reused as part of the construction of the new premises; 

5. The applicant is advised that the premises should be managed in a 
responsible manner at all times. 

160. PLANNING APPEALS AND DELEGATED DECISIONS 

The Planning Services Manager reported that three planning appeals had been 
received and three planning appeals had been dismissed.  She also reported on the 
number of delegated decisions.  

Page 28



PLANNING COMMITTEE

8 FEBRUARY 2017

PC. 29

All matters had arisen between 23 December 2016 to 27 January 2017.

The report was noted.

A recording of this meeting is available to view via the following link: 

Part 1- https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tq5T1LrYb0k
Part 2- https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=L-6MVljNBoY

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 7.30 pm)

Page 29

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Tq5T1LrYb0k
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=L-6MVljNBoY


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 (a)

Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date: 08 March 2017

Report from: Assistant Director of Housing and Built
Environment

Application Address: Lamp post banners at Bexhill Road,
Sedlescombe Road North, The Ridge, Old
London Road, Havelock Road, Cambridge
Road, Queens Road and The Stade

Proposal: Use of 28 lamp post banners for
advertising, the banners are 70cm wide
and 1.67m height

Application No: HS/AA/16/00920

Recommendation: Grant Advertisement Consent

Ward: CASTLE
File No:
Applicant: Hastings Borough Council Aquila House

Breeds Place  Hastings TN34 3UY

Interest: Local Authority
Existing Use: Lamp Posts

Policies
Conservation Area: Yes - Old Town
Listed Building: No

Public Consultation
Adj. Properties: Yes
Advertisement: Yes - Conservation Area
Letters of Objection: 4
Petitions Received: 0

Application Status:                              Not delegated - More than 2 letters of objection
             received

Site and Surrounding Area
This application refers to 28 lamp posts in ten different locations throughout Hastings and St
Leonards. The lamp posts located on The Ridge are split into two locations.

Page 31

Agenda Item 5a



Location 1: The Ridge - Beaulieu Gardens/Harrow Lane
Firstly, there are three lamp posts located between Beaulieu Gardens and Harrow Lane
numbered 139,140 and 141. These are modern style lamp posts located on a busy B road
running along the northern boundary of the town. This area in particular has a number of
detached single dwellinghouses of a post war style set adjacent to the lamp post locations.

Location 2: The Ridge - Woodlands Way/Yew Tree Close
The other site on The Ridge is located to the northern side of the road at the entrance to
Woodlands Way, a small industrial area set back from the road. The lamp posts are
numbered 93, 95 and 96.

Location 3: Bexhill Road/Bexleigh Avenue
Three lamp posts are located on Bexhill Road (A259) west of Bexleigh Avenue; this road is
the main coastal route through the town with open fields to the north and the coastline to the
south. These lamp posts are numbered 85, 87 and 88.

Location 4: Sedlescombe Road North
The site at Sedlescombe Road North (A21), the main road access from London, is located
around the entrance of Harlequin Gardens, a wide section of the road with residential
properties on either side of varying styles. To the north are a number of large commercial
units of mixed uses. The lamp posts are numbered 67, 68 and 69.

Location 5: Old London Road
The proposal for Old London Road is a site of three lamp posts located adjacent to TW Car
Sales. This is a densely populated area of Hastings with predominantly terraced Victorian
housing on this section of road. The lamp posts are numbered 50, 51 and 52.

Location 6: The Stade
Three lamp posts are located within the Stade Open Space, a large open area located to the
west of the Jerwood Gallery. This has a mix of masts and modern style lamp posts
numbered 3, 4 and 5 and is situated within the Old Town Conservation Area.

The seven lamp posts within locations 7, 8 and 9 are located within the Town Centre
Conservation Area.

Location 7: Queens Road/Wellington Place
These three lamp posts are located on Queens Road between the Town Hall and Wellington
Place which is a pedestrianised area with predominantly retail units surrounding the lamp
posts numbered 1, 3 and 5.

Location 8: Havelock Road
These two lamp posts are located on Havelock Road, a main access route between the
Town Centre and Hastings Station. This road is mainly used for retail purposes with the
addition of the Hastings campus of the University of Brighton. The lamp posts are numbered
5 and 6.

Page 32



Location 9: Cambridge Road
These two lamp posts are located on Cambridge Road, a pedestrianised route through the
Town Centre, again with predominantly retail units surrounding the site. The lamp posts are
numbered 3 and 4.

Location 10: Queens Road/Vicinity of Morrisons   
This location consists of a mixed use of commercial and residential premises of single to 3
storeys. Banners are proposed to be attached to lamp posts 32, 33 and 34.

Lastly, all of the lamp posts to which the banners are to be attached are relatively modern.

Constraints
Flood Zone 3 Environment Agency
Flood Zone 2 Environment Agency
Flooding Groundwater
Flooding Surface Water 1 in 30
Flooding Surface Water 1 in 100
Flooding Surface Water 1 in 1000
Combe Valley Countryside Park
Low Pressure Pipeline SGN
High Pressure Pipeline 2km Buffer SGN
Network Rail Land Ownership 10m Buffer
Climate Change Outline Tidal 200 Years 
Archaeological Notification Area
Historic Landfill Site 250m Buffer
Old Town Conservation Area
Town Centre Conservation Areas

Proposed development
This proposal seeks advertising consent for the use of 28 existing lamp posts for advertising
banners on behalf of Hastings Borough Council. It is proposed that the banners change
regularly depending on the event advertised. However, the banners will usually be changed
every fortnight or every two months. The banners themselves measure 0.7m W x 1.67m H
and are made of PVC. The banners are to be located at a height of 3m above ground level.
The lettering on the banners will measure no more than 0.3m and varies depending on the
event advertised. Banners will be attached to a wind spring banner system complying to
EN40 regulations. These regulations stipulate the maximum wind load that any type of
signage is allowed to exert onto a standard street lighting column. The system is constructed
with two black powder coated aluminium brackets and two fibre glass arms, integrated
spring-loaded tensioning and a banner arm flexing mechanism. There are also 6 banding
strips per set (3 per bracket). No illumination is proposed for the lamp post banners.

Relevant Planning History
No relevant planning history

Page 33



National and Local Policies
Hastings Local Plan – Planning Strategy (2014)
Policy FA1 - Strategic Policy for Western Area
Policy FA2 - Strategic Policy for Central Area
Policy FA3 - Strategy for Hastings Town Centre
Policy FA5 - Strategic Policy for Eastern Area
Policy FA6 - Strategic Policy for The Seafront
Policy SC1 - Overall Strategy for Managing Change in a Sustainable Way
Policy EN1 - Built and Historic Environment
Policy EN3 - Nature Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
Policy E4 - Tourism and Visitors

Hastings Local Plan – Development Management Plan (2015)
Policy LP1 - Considering planning applications
Policy DM1 - Design Principles
Policy DM3 - General Amenity
Policy HN1 - Development Affecting the Significance and Setting of Designated Heritage
Assets (including Conservation Areas)
Policy HN4 - Development affecting Heritage Assets with Archaeological and Historic Interest
or Potential Interest
Policy HN9 - Areas of Landscape Value
Policy CQ1 - Cultural Quarters

Other Policies/Guidance
Supplementary Planning Document - Shopfronts and Advertisements

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
The NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Para 14 sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and states that
development proposals which accord with the development plan should be approved without
delay.

Three dimensions of sustainability given in paragraph 7 are to be sought jointly: economic
(by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and at the
right time to support growth and innovation); social (providing housing, creating high quality
environment with accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting
and enhancing natural, built and historic environment) whilst paragraph 10 advises that plans
and decisions need to take local circumstances into account, so they respond to the different
opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas.

Section 7 - Requiring Good Design
Section 11 - Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment
Section 12 - Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
What factors can a local planning authority take into consideration when determining an
advertisement application?

Regulation 3 requires that local planning authorities control the display of advertisements in
the interests of amenity and public safety, taking into account the provisions of the
development plan, in so far as they are material, and any other relevant factors.

Page 34



Unless the nature of the advertisement is in itself harmful to amenity or public safety, consent
cannot be refused because the local planning authority considers the advertisement to be
misleading (in so far as it makes misleading claims for products), unnecessary or offensive to
public morals.

Paragraph: 026 Reference ID: 18b-026-20140306
Revision date: 06 03 2014

"Amenity" is not defined exhaustively in the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. It includes aural and visual amenity (regulation
2(1)) and factors relevant to amenity include the general characteristics of the locality,
including the presence of any feature of historic, architectural, cultural or similar interest
(regulation 3(2)(a)).

Consultations comments
Highways - No Objection subject to condition
No objection subject to a condition for the banners to be at least 2.1m above ground level.
This was requested to ensure the safety of persons and vehicles proceeding along the
highway.

Conservation Officer - No Objection
Not all of the lamp posts are located within conservation areas within the Borough. Lamp
posts located on Havelock Road, Cambridge Road and the southern lamp posts of Queens
Road are all within the Town Centre Conservation Area. Whereas the lamp posts located in
The Stade open space are located in the Old Town Conservation Area. All the lamp posts
within the conservation areas are of a modern style. The banners are considered to be
relatively small in scale and therefore will not cause any impact on any adjacent listed
building nor on the character of the conservation areas. The proposals comply with the
requirements of the NPPF in respect of the conservation of heritage assets. The
development is also in accordance with adopted local plan policies EN1 of the Local
Planning Strategy 2014 and HN1 of the Development Management Plan 2015.

Representations
In respect of this application, 28 site notices were erected, each covering a lamp post.
However, given that three lamp posts locations were incorrectly identified in the application
by the applicant, a further three site notices were erected on the incorrect lamp posts
identified and a new period of neighbour notification was undertaken. In response, eight
letters of representation have been received. Six letters were objections, two of which were
from local organisations. Two of the letters of representation were received following
amended plans withdrawing their original objection, leaving a total of 4 letters of objection.
The concerns within these letters are as follows:

The borough has a lot of advertisements already and this will further add to the clutter.
These banners could further distract vehicle users and cause danger to other drivers.
The banners are unattractive to the character of the area, noted that this comment is in
relation to the incorrectly identified lamp posts in Rock-A-Nore Road.
There would be a need to update the banners on a regular basis and traffic problems
may arise.

Page 35



PVC should be considered to be inappropriate in areas of the Old Town.
There are concerns that the banners will replace the hanging flower baskets.
Use of short heritage light lamp posts.
Concerns that the banners will in future be used for commercial purposes.
Maintenance issues for lamp posts. 
The Council should be looking for alternative ways to improve Queens Road.
Concern regarding the way in which this application was publicised.

Determining Issues
Principle
The sites are in sustainable locations and the application is, therefore, in accordance with
policy LP1 Hastings Local Plan - Development Management (2015) in this respect and
acceptable in principle subject to other local plan policies.

Impact on Character and appearance of area/Conservation Area
Policy HN1 of the Development Management Plan 2015 refers to how 'developments affect
the significance of heritage assets (including conservation areas), in order to sustain and
enhance the significance of the heritage asset'. It is noted that Policy EN1 of the Local
Planning Strategy states that 'particular care will be given to protecting the significance and
setting of the following heritage assets'. This application has 28 different lamp posts of which
10 are located within the Hastings Town Centre and Old Town Conservation Areas. Given
that the application must take into account the significance and setting of the lamp posts, the
Conservation Officer has been consulted on this matter. The small size and scale of the
banners is such that there would not be significant harm caused to any adjacent heritage
assets or wider views of the conservation areas in which the lamp posts sit. Furthermore the
banners are considered to be temporary and will be removed and replaced on a regular
basis, either every two weeks or two months depending on the event being advertised. As a
result the banners can be removed quickly and without any loss to the characteristics of the
area if required.

There has been some concern raised that the banners will not be maintained and will start to
look worn over time especially in the conservation areas: any permission will include a
condition for the maintenance and upkeep of the banners in all areas of the town. It is noted
that one of the concerns in relation to this application was to the banners being unattractive
to the character of the area. This comment was raised in relation to the incorrectly identified
lamp posts in Rock-A-Nore Road. The amended plan shows that no lamp posts are erected
in Rock-A-Nore Road and instead the lamp posts are located in The Stade which are of a
modern design. Therefore no such conflict will occur as the banners are attached to modern
lamp posts and sit well with this style of lamp post. The banners are small in scale and size
and use of PVC is not considered harmful to the character of the conservation areas. The
use of PVC in the Old Town Conservation Area is acceptable as it is located on a modern
style lamp post in an area of the Old Town surrounded by the less historic buildings of the
Jerwood Gallery, Stade Hall and Cafe. In terms of the banners in the Town Centre
Conservation Area, these are located in areas where there is a mixture of shopfronts of
differing colours and designs; the banners are considered to be no more intrusive. The
concern in relation to the banner replacing the existing hanging flower baskets in Queens
Road has been noted, however, the hanging baskets can still be placed on the lamp posts at
the same time. Policy E4 of the Local Planning Strategy 2014 states 'working towards an all
year round tourist season is a key aim for the town' and it can be suggested that the banners
will provide a better means of promoting the town. Therefore taking into consideration the
matters discussed above and the comments made by the Borough Conservation Officer, this
proposal complies with policies HN1 of the Development Management Plan 2015 and Policy

Page 36



EN1 of the Local Planning Strategy 2014 and is considered to be acceptable.

Impact on public safety
Policy DM3 of the Development Management Plan 2015 states that development would be
acceptable where, amongst other things, 'it can be adequately demonstrated that there is no
safety risk to the public, and that development is appropriately protected from any existing
facilities that may affect amenity; for example busy roads, waste water treatment works
etc;.(criterion H)' This proposal is located above ground level and will not provide any
obstruction to road or pavement users. However, as a result of this application the East
Sussex County Council Highway Lighting and Traffic Signals Team were consulted in relation
to any impact that the banners may have on pedestrians and vehicles passing by. A
recommendation for the banners to be at least 2.1m above ground level has been met as the
proposal is located 3m from the ground. Taking this into account, it is considered that this
proposal satisfies the recommendation from Highways and has taken into account Policy
DM3 and is therefore considered to be acceptable. 

Other
This application does not have any type of ground level impact and therefore will not
increase the flood risk. Furthermore, the banners will not impact on any archaeological
importance as no ground disturbance will result from the proposal. It is not expected that
there will be any interference with low or high pressure pipelines, Network Rail land or impact
on the Combe Valley Countryside Park.

Conclusion
Taking the above into account, it is considered that the proposal would not have an
unacceptable impact on the character of the areas or conservation areas or public safety and
as such is recommended for approval.

These proposals comply with the development plan in accordance with Section 38 (6) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 which states:

"If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be
made under the Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise”.

The Human Rights considerations have been taken into account fully in balancing the
planning issues.

Recommendation

Grant Advertisement Consent subject to the following conditions:

1. No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of
the site or any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant
permission.

Page 37



2. No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to—
a) endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour

or aerodrome (civil or military);
b) obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway

signal or aid to navigation by water or air; or
c) hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or

surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

3. Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of
advertisements, shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair the
visual amenity of the site.

4. Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of
displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not
endanger the public.

5. Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed,
the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or
impair visual amenity.

6. The period of consent lapses at the expiration of five years from the date of
issue.

7. There shall be a minimum clearance of 2.1 metres from the footway/verge
level to the underside of the projecting sign. 

Reasons:

1. In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

2. In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the area.

3. In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the area.

4. In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 2007.

5. In the interests of safeguarding the amenities of the area.

6. To comply with regulation 14(5) of the Town and Country Planning (Control
of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.  Any advertisement may
continue to be displayed after this date, subject to the same conditions as
set out in the Consent and the power of the District Planning Authority to
require discontinuance of the display under Regulation 8.

7. To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles proceeding along the highway.

Page 38



Notes to the Applicant

1. Failure to comply with any condition imposed on this consent may result in
enforcement action without further warning.

2. Statement of positive engagement: In dealing with this application Hastings
Borough Council has actively sought to work with the applicant in a positive
and proactive manner, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

_____________________________________________________________________

Officer to Contact
Mr S Morley, Telephone 01424 783277

Background Papers
Application No: HS/AA/16/00920 including all letters and documents

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

8

6

9

515

14

12

LB

CF

780

22
0

22
2

788

814

806

786
790

826

784

777

816

782

CR

PO

Hall

Mast

Tra
ck

The Old

135.9m

128.3m

Pa
th 

(um
)

Boundary Stone

El Sub Sta

Chapmans

Pams Barn

Radio and TV Booster Station

THE RIDGE

HA
RR

OW
 LA

NE

MAPLE HEIGHTS

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

LOCATION 1 - The Ridge - Beaulieu Gardens/Harrow Lane

BEAULIEU GARDENS

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

3

6

1

8

9

Works

19

15

14

22

16

El

LB

Sta

420

452

413

429

410

424

431

427

442

450

465
459

461

408

447
418

449

457Sub

Und 424a

408a

45
7a

44
7b

44
7a

Sinks

Issues
2 to 10

Mayfield

120.1m

123.1m

El Sub Sta

CP & ED Bdy

21

8

3

THE RIDGE

ASH TREE CLOSE

YEW TREE CLOSE

WOO
DL

AN
DS

 W
AY

MAITLAND CLOSE

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

LOCATION 2 - The Ridge - Woodlands Way/Yew Tree Close

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

FB

Def

SP
104

576

6.1m

9.3m

6.2m

Stones

Shingle

Cycle Way

Path (um)

MP 31.25

Co Const & ED Bdy

Boulders

Path (um)
BEXHILL ROAD

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

BE
XL

EIG
H A

VE
NU

E

LOCATION 3 - Bexhill Road/Bexleigh Avenue

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

6

2

1

8

7

95

26

22

34 32

12

30
28

3638

23

El

Wayside

433474
49

0
486

49
2

443

The Willows

Well

Path

88.8m

97.4m

Sub StaPath (um)

1

2
1

THE HOE

HARLEQUIN GARDENS

SEDLESCOMBE ROAD NORTH

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

LOCATION 4 - Sedlescombe Road North

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

9

6

1

2

11
13

40
48

71
83

67

86

57 49

4a

12

47

84

93

74
5664

66

41

CF

47a

444

414

378
384 337

321

391

416

371

325

410
353

17
3

19
2

395

101

345

406

381

396

430

319
369

367
363

361
357

FW

CR

CW

CP

PH

Und

444a

Hall

Bank

1 to 10

Shelter

Raleigh

108.3m

104.1m

103.8m

House

446
 to 

452

Path (um)

War Meml

14

ED & Ward Bdy
ED & Ward Bdy

13

FW

6

CW

FW

Path (um)

ED & Ward Bdy

CF

CW

Path (um)

FW

CF

Path (um)

Path (um)

FW

CF

Path (um)

CR

CW

Path (um)

CF

Path (um)

Path (um)

GRAYSTONE LANE

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

OLD LONDON ROAD

ALFRED ROAD

LOCATION 5 - Old London Road

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

The Stade

Fishermen's Huts

7

5 1

8

3

6

b 42

PH

Hall
Stade

11Winkle Island

Jerwood Gallery

Amusement Park

Club

70
69

54

6718

51

58
65

66

61

7376

31

16

85

19

20

74

49

68

10

22

15

12

81
83

80

56

63

17

53
4a

27

52

13

87

Hastings Miniature Railway

El

55

LB

Winkle

a b

Gardens

64
c

Memorial

Net Shops

Swan Inn
Bourne Hall

8 t
o

73
a

52a

51a

64a
64d

Pleasant Row

PC

Well

14
 to

Crown

Posts

1 to 3

1 to 6

4 to 6

TCB

Court

9.5
m

7.7m

Winch

1 to 31

Centre

Shelter

Lifeboat Station

Town Wall

16 to 18

64 
to 6

6

10 to 12

(remains of)

House

Waterloo

Lavender

Blackman

Wellesley

The Isobel

Bourne Court

El Sub Sta

Post Office

Rising Bollard

Ta
ma

ris
k S

tep
s

Starr's Cottages

Post Office Passage

Memorial

1

12

PH

6

Winch

Winch

7

5

5
4

18

1

Shelter

PH

3

11

10TCB

1

61

Winch

3

1

PH

1

58

7

3

61

6
PH

Posts

11 to 3

Winch

LANE

EAST

EAST STREET

WINDING STREET

ROCK-A-NORE ROAD

EAST BEACH STREET

EAST BEACH STREET

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

LOCATION 6 - The Stade

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

89

3

6

5

1

7

2a

4

PH

Hall

Bank

Central

Telephone

Cinema

Hastings
Town Hall

Exchange

Kin
gs 

Walk

11

York Buildings

Qu
ee

n's
 Av

en
ue

Quee
ns 

Pa
rad

e

Queens Square

Robertson Street

PCs

Ba
nk

 B
uil

din
gs

39

32

33

6a

59

19

615853

14

10

2917

27

15

12

31

26

44

20211a

13

25

57

43

5a

28

60

18

16
47

46

35
37

38

42 24
2341

22

45

30

36

K2

LB

K1

211
25a

13b

27b

208
207

13a

52b

25b

46a

205

212
210

The Turret

VS3

PO

Thrift

MS3

MS2

MS1

Posts

1 to 3

1 to 7

7 to
 8

TCB

TCBs

Church
Risin

g

Shelter

Bolla
rd

54 to 56

30 
to 3

6

House

El Sub Sta

15 
to 1

6

43a

Haig House

Havelock
Building

6

3
1

6

PH

1617

13
30

44

31

PH

1

PH

3

4

El Sub Sta 20

9

14

1

37

El Sub Sta

27

10

15
21

1

4

29

13

Shelter

57

1

26

4

7

23

El Sub Sta

Shelter
23

9

El Sub Sta

13

6

Shelter

29

3
8

TCBs

2

11

Shelter

9

PH

Shelter
8

PH

10

28

3 2

5 6

16

5

1

4

PH

27

29 37

7

2
12

4

33

43

5

18

Shelter

PL
AC

E

QUEENS ROAD

ALBERT ROAD

HAROLD PLACE

MIDDLE STREET

WELLINGTON PLACE

YORK GARDENS
RU

SS
EL

L S
TR

EE
T

PELHAM STREET

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

LOCATION 7 - Queens Road/Wellington Place

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

of

6

7

3
21

a

4

9

PH

Hall

23

24

Bank

Place
Lacuna

Church

Car Park

Telephone

Brighton)

Multistorey

Havelock

Exchange

11

(University

His Place

Priory Square

Community

Queens Square

Robertson Street

Th
e

Hastings Campus

31

10
59

15

53 58 61

48

16

27

12

56

36

21

50

19
1a

25

45

26

57 60

29

13

51
46

43

35
37

14

32

44

52

30

33

11.1m

TCB

Road

K2

LB

K1

Young
Centre

Building

People's

51c

Xtrax

Ta
be

rna
cle

27b

52b
51a

43a

Ev
an

ge
lic

al

VS3

VS
2

Post Office

Queensbury House

Priory Square Building

PCs MS2

Posts

1 to 3

5 to 7

TCBs

Shelter

54 to 56

47 to 49

18 to 24

El Sub Sta

Rising Bollards

Haig House

Brassey Steps

1

LB

3

3

13

2

El Sub Sta

3

Havelock

1
27

11

27

El Sub Sta

PH

23

Shelter

El Sub Sta

10
4

PH

4

4

16 14 11

1

Posts9

1

PH

1

31

PH

PH

10
PH

24

45

1

29

Shelter

ROAD STATION

MIDDLE STREET

PRIORY STREET

HAVELOCK ROAD

ROBERTSON STREET

STATION APPROACH

CAMBRIDGE ROAD

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

LOCATION 8 - Havelock Road

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

of

7

2
3

8

1
a

5

4

6

9

PH

Hall

Bank

Church

Place

Hotel

Lacuna
Car Park

Telephone

Brighton)

Multistorey

Albany Court

Exchange

11

(University

His Place

Priory Square

Community

Robertson Street

Th
e

Hastings Campus

Holy Trinity

7.9m

31

10

41
32

59

15

615853
16

27

33

21

50

19

35
34

1a

45

25
26

20

57 60

24

12

29

13

51
46

43

37

14

42

40

28

23

44

52

Road

LB

Building

Library

51c

(children)

Ta
be

rna
cle

Havelock

27b

52b

41a

51a

43a

Ev
an

ge
lic

al

Post Office

Queens Apartments

Priory Square Building

Posts

1 to 3

1 to 9
TCB

Court Trinity

7 to 11

D Fn

TCBs

1 to 17

Shelter

54 to 56

17 to 19

47 to 49

18 to 33

18 to 24

34 to 69

El Sub Sta

Rising Bollards

5 to 7

2

13

23

16

PH

29

12

Posts

El Sub Sta

Shelter

31

1a

1

El Sub Sta

9

45

Rising Bollards

3

4

25

31

LB

Shelter

PH

El Sub Sta

1

10

7

El Sub Sta

8

PH

2

Church

4
1

27

2

10

27

4

6

3
3

33

27

14

PH

PH

35

PH

11

29

1

43

Shelter

TERRACE

ROBERTSON

MIDDLE STREET

PRIORY STREET

CARLISLE PARADE

HAVELOCK ROAD

ROBERTSON STREET

TRINITY STREET

CAMBRIDGE ROAD

PASSAGE

ROBERTSON STREET

CARLISLE PARADE

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

LOCATION 9 - Cambridge Road

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Lamp post banners at 
Various Locations Use of 28 lamp post banners for advertising, the banners are 70cm

wide and 1.67m height 

6

2

1 3
4

57
8

PH

Centre
Britannia

Enterprise

Gas

8.1m

7.4m

7.9m

97
55

57

20

4a

94

12

93

68

62

82
73

75

49

14

88
87

86

84

10

91
92

85

96

90

56

El

Steps

10.4m

111

Works

11
7

11
8

Sta

147

125

145

10
4

15
8

15
4

15
3

10
1

16
8

124
123

10
8

15
0

140

Noonan's Steps

St 
An

dre
w's

 Vi
lla

s5 to 9

8.2m

TCBs

1 to 13

10
9-1

15
Shelter

120 to 122
El Sub Sta

6

12
3

4

1

5

2

62

2

88

1

1

PH

4 5

6

2

94

11
7

RO
AD

ST
ON

EF
IEL

D

MI
LW

AR
D 

RO
AD

STONEFIELD PLACE

WATERWORKS ROAD

NELSON ROAD

© Crown Copyright and database rights [2017]. OS [100021328]

Feb 2017

HS/AA/16/00920
1:1,250

±

Assistant Director Housing & Built Environment
Hastings Borough Council,
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451090
email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk
Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions. You are granted a non-exclusive,
royalty free, revocable licence solely to view the Licensed Data for non-commercial 
purposes for the period during which Hastings Borough Council makes it available. 
You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available
the Licenced Data to third parties in any form.  Third party rights to enforce the
terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

Date:
Scale:
Application No. 

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

QU
EE

NS
 R

OA
D

LOCATION 10 - Queens Road/Vicinity of Morrisons

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item: 6

Report to: Planning Committee

Date: 8 March 2017

Report from: Planning Services Manager

Title of report: PLANNING APPEALS & DELEGATED DECISIONS

Purpose of report: To inform the Planning Committee of any planning appeals that 
have been lodged,  of any decisions received from the Planning 
Inspectorate and the number of delegated decisions made 
between 30 January to 24 February 2017

Recommendations: That the report be noted

The following appeals have been received:

Nothing to report

The following appeals have been dismissed:

Nothing to report

The following appeals have been allowed:

Address/
Application

Number

Proposal PSM’s Rec. Where the 
decision was 

made

Type of 
Appeal

HS/FA/16/00608
127 Queens 
Road, 
Hastings, TN34 
1RP

Change of use 
from domestic 
dwelling (C3) to 
HMO (C4) - 
(Retrospective)  

Non-
Determination 
within time 
allowed

DELEGATED PLANNING

Page 61

Agenda Item 6



Type of Delegated Decision Number of Decisions
Granted Permission 39
Part Granted - Part Refused  1
Prior Approval Approved 1
Refused Permission 7
Withdrawn by Applicant 3

Background Papers:
Various correspondences with Planning Inspectorate

Report written by:
Louise Brooks - Tel: (01424) 783264 Email: dcenquiries@hastings.gov.uk

Page 62


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2017
	Minutes

	5a Lamp Post Banners At Various Locations
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 1
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 2
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 3
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 4
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 5
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 6
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 7
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 8
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 9
	MAP_HS_AA_16_00920_Lamp Posts_LOCATION 10

	6 Planning Appeals and Delegated Decisions:

